# CABINET

Thursday, 20 December 2012

<u>Present:</u> Councillor P Davies Finance

(Chair)

Councillors G Davies Housing and Community Safety

P Hackett Regeneration and Planning Strategy

AER Jones Corporate Resources

C Jones Adult Social Care and Public Health

B Kenny Environment

AR McLachlan Improvement and Governance C Meaden Culture, Tourism and Leisure

H Smith Streetscene and Transport Services

Apologies Councillor T Smith

#### 142 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were received.

#### 143 MINUTES

Resolved - That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 29 November 2012 be confirmed as a correct record.

#### 144 BUDGET 2013/16 - INITIAL PROPOSALS

A report from the Interim Director of Finance provided the latest Budget Projections for 2013/16. The Budget Projections for 2013/16 included £11 million for growth arising from demographic changes, Government decisions regarding funding and local decisions relating to income.

It was proposed that an extraordinary Council meeting be convened before the end of January to approve the Council Tax Base and Business Rates Base as they had to be agreed by 31 January 2013. The Mayor had agreed to call this meeting on Monday 28 January, 2013 and all Members had been informed.

Budget Cabinet was scheduled for 18 February 2013 with Budget Council scheduled for 5 March 2013. The Council had to agree the Budget and set the level of Council Tax for 2013/14 by 10 March 2013.

The Chief Executive introduced the report, he informed the Cabinet that following the Chancellor of the Exchequer's Autumn statement

announcement, the budget gap for the next three years was now £109m. The Local Government Finance Settlement had been announced on 19 December and an initial analysis had been provided to the Cabinet by the Interim Director of Finance, this indicated that Wirral's loss of grant in 2013/14 would broadly be as estimated within Wirral's current budget projections, which was a loss of 6% equivalent to £8 million. Details regarding a number of grant areas were, however, still awaited. The Education Services Grant would only be known in late January and Public Health Funding had not yet been announced.

Joe Taylor, Unison Wirral Branch Secretary was invited to address the Cabinet. He welcomed the extension of the consultation period in respect of proposed changes to terms and conditions and emphasised that no savings had been agreed by any Trades Unions at this stage. With £6m in the salary budget for terms and conditions, the proposed reduction of £2.8m represented a 48 per cent cut, with an additional £1.5m saving if four days unpaid leave was introduced, a 1.5 per cent pay cut lasting three years.

Mr Taylor welcomed the extension of the consultation period in respect of the voluntary enhanced severance scheme and that the Administration would be speaking to the Government about possible capitalisation.

He re-emphasised the Trade Unions opposition to compulsory redundancies and that if any were put in place then the unions would ballot their members. Legal advice from UNISON's solicitors had been forwarded to the Administration and he hoped that following the senior management restructure no redundancy notices would be issued on 21 December, 2012.

Mr Taylor further commented that UNISON's national officer would be coming to Wirral on 16 January, 2013 and would be examining the Council's books in the hope of suggesting alternative savings. He went on to give particular examples on certain staff of the devastating cuts in pay if the proposed changes to terms and conditions were approved.

Mr Taylor further stated that immediate savings could be made now by making it a priority to cease the employment of consultants, advisors and agency staff. He urged the Administration not to smash communities and the people who voted the Administration into power.

Councillor Phil Davies informed the meeting that the proposed cuts were not of the Labour Group's making but had their origins with the Conservative / Liberal Democrat Coalition Government and were the result of their austerity policies. The previous Administration had also left a budget deficit of £17m. He had demanded a meeting with Eric Pickles, Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government and would be lobbying the Government with other Merseyside Labour Leaders.

He went on to state that, as Leader of the Council, he would not shirk his responsibilities in setting a legal budget and he had been elected to prioritise the needs of the poor, weak and vulnerable.

In moving a number of proposed savings options, he stated that they were on the basis that they related to the 'back office' rather than front line services and the consultation exercise had shown that the overwhelming majority of respondents supported saving money on these items. In the first part of December, each Overview and Scrutiny Committee had had the opportunity to discuss the budget options and question relevant officers. This approach would continue with further Overview and Scrutiny Committees to be held in advance of an Extraordinary Council meeting at the end of January.

It should be noted that no proposals relating to staff terms and conditions were being proposed at this time as negotiations with the Trade Unions were ongoing. The Administration was committed to working with the Trade Unions to try to reach agreement on these matters. It should also be noted that a number of these options required more formal consultation. Those relating to staff would be subject to further detailed consultation on the potential impact with employees as part of the statutory process. The outcome of this would be reported back to Cabinet.

The savings options proposed were set out in an appendix which showed the saving over the period 2013-16 amounting to £29.6 million. Of this sum, £14.5 million related to 2013/14.

On a motion by Councillor Phil Davies, seconded by Councillor Ann McLachlan, it was -

#### Resolved - That:

- (1) The Budget Projections 2013/16 and the increase in the Budget gap from £103 million to £109 million be noted.
- (2) The Budget Growth 2013/16 totalling £10.7 million be agreed and the detail be built into the Budget.
- (3) The savings options 2013/16, agreed to date of £11.2 million, be noted.
- (4) Cabinet notes that an extraordinary meeting of the Council has been convened for Monday, 28 January 2013 to approve the Council Tax Base and the Business Rates Base.
- (5) Savings options 2013/16 totalling £29.6 million be agreed, in principle, subject to the outcome of further consultation where required.

- (6) It be noted that with the savings agreed to date of £11.2 million these proposals take the total savings to £40.8 million. Of this sum £21.6 million relates to 2013/14 and represents 55% of the Budget gap for 2013/14.
- (7) These proposals be referred to special Overview and Scrutiny Committees for further consideration.

# **BUDGET SAVINGS PROPOSALS – DECEMBER 2012**

Budget Option	2013/14 £000	2014/15 £000	2015/16 £000	Total £000	Requires formal staff consulta tion
FAMILIES AND WELLBEING					
I AMILIEO AND WELEBEING					
Connexions – reduce contract costs	700	300	0	1,000	No
Transfer of PFI affordability gap to Schools Budget	0	0	2,300	2,300	No
Transfer PPM to Schools Budget	250	200	0	450	No
Academies charges for services	60	0	0	60	No
School Improvements	100	0	0	100	No
Housing Benefits – Maximisation of grant	2,000	0	0	2,000	No
TRANSFORMATION & RESOURCES					
Treasury management activities including borrowing costs	1,700	0	0	1,700	No
Rationalisation of IT	210	90	0	300	Yes
Power supplies – contract saving	11	0	0	11	No
Dro ou wo mo o mt					
Procurement cords	40	0	0	40	No
<ul><li>- Procurement cards</li><li>- Services provided charged to Schools budget</li></ul>	40 80	0	0	80 80	No No
- External Audit of Utility Payments	200	0	0	200	No

- Review and reduce suppliers	0	3,000	0	3,000	No
- Implementation of category	0	0,000	5,000	5,000	No
management			0,000	0,000	110
- Review of VAT	0	1,000	0	1,000	No
11011011 01 1711		1,000		1,000	110
Senior Management Re-					
structure					
- Directors/Heads of Service	1,000	0	0	1,000	Yes see
	·				agenda
					item
- All managers above PO1	2,792	0	0	2,792	Yes
- Re-structure – Finance	621	0	0	621	Yes
- Re-structure - Technical	250	0	0	250	Yes
Services					
- Re-structure -	337	0	0	337	Yes
Regeneration, Housing					
and Planning					
- Consultants and Agency staff	500	0	0	500	Yes
Asset Management Re-	50	50	0	100	Yes
structure					
Closure of Acre Lane &	0	0	458	458	No
Municipal Building					
Move to 4 yearly elections	0	0	100	100	No
Re-structure - HR service	292	292	0	584	Yes
Re-structure - Legal Services	300	300	0	600	Yes
Review of Committee Services	175	0	0	175	Yes
Transforming Administration	500	1,000	1,000	2,500	Yes
Support					
Marketing & Public Relations	52	0	0	52	No
Destination Marketing	95	0	0	95	No
Reduction of External Audit	140	0	0	140	No
Fees					
Deletion of vacant posts		_	_		
- Customer Services	550	0	0	550	No
- Pest Control	30	0	0	30	No
- Education Psychologists	80	0	0	80	No
DECEMEDATION C					
ENVIRONMENT					
		0	0	10	
Home Insulation Programme	986	0	0	986	No
REGENERATION &	10 352 986	-	-		No No No

SUMMARY					
To further staff consultation	7,027	1,732	1,000	9,759	Yes
Not subject to staff consultation	7,436	4,500	7,858	19,794	No
-					
TOTALS	14,463	6,232	8,858	29,553	

#### 145 **SENIOR MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE**

The Chief Executive introduced a report which detailed proposals in relation to the Council's senior management restructure, following the Cabinet and Employment and Appointments reports of 18 September 2012 (minutes 83 and 21, respectively, refer). The proposals included details of financial savings which were attached as an appendix to the report.

The report proposed to reduce the senior management structure of the Council from 30 full time equivalent (FTE) posts to 19 FTE posts (excluding the three Strategic Director posts). Reducing senior management costs played a major contribution in reducing pressure on frontline services.

Councillor Phil Davies stated that the priority was to relieve as much as possible the pressure on frontline services.

With an addition to the recommendations in the report, moved by Councillor Phil Davies and seconded by Councillor McLachlan, it was -

#### Resolved – That Cabinet:

- (1) Endorses the report
- (2) Refers and recommends the following proposals to the Employment and Appointments Committee for consideration and decision:

The deletion of the following posts:

#### **Adult Social Services:**

- Deputy Director of Adult Social Services
- Head of Finance and Performance (Adults)
- Head of Locality Personalised Support (Adults)
- Head of Specialist Personalised Support (Adults)
- Head of Safeguarding and Care Governance (Adults)

# **Children's Services:**

- Deputy Director: Planning, Resources and Schools (CYPD)
- Head of Children's Social Care
- Head of Learning and Achievement

#### Finance:

- Director of Finance
- Deputy Director of Finance
- Head of IT Services
- Head of Benefits, Revenues and Customer Services

# **Law, HR and Asset Management:**

- Director of Law, HR and Asset Management
- Head of Regulation
- Head of Asset Management

## **Technical Services:**

- Director of Technical Services
- Deputy Director of Technical Services
- Head of Cultural Services

# Regeneration, Housing and Planning:

• Director of Regeneration, Housing and Planning

The creation of the following posts:

# Families and Wellbeing:

- Head of Transformation (Adults)
- Head of Delivery (Adults)
- Head of Specialist Services (CYPD)
- Head of Targeted Services (CYPD)
- Head of Universal and Infrastructure (CYPD) and Assistant Chief Executive

# **Regeneration and Environment:**

· Head of Environment and Regulation

# **Transformation and Resources:**

Head of Business Processes

The re-designation of the following posts:

# **Regeneration and Environment:**

Head of Housing to Head of Housing and Community Safety

#### **Chief Executive:**

 Head of Communication and Community Engagement to Head of Neighbourhoods and Engagement.

- (3) Approves the re-alignment of services across the three programme areas as detailed in the report.
- (4) Asks the Chief Executive to consult on and to implement the further management restructure for senior manager levels to PO level, with expected financial savings of £4m.
- (5) Authorises the Chief Executive to confirm and implement the management structure as agreed at such time and in such manner as he considers appropriate, including making any additional administrative changes as are necessary to give effect to the changes including making any consequential changes to the scheme of delegation as are necessary to give effect to the new arrangements.

# 146 **REVENUE MONITORING 2012/13 - MONTH 7 (OCTOBER)**

The Interim Director of Finance reported upon the revenue position for 2012/13 as at Month 7 (October 2012). His report identified the latest financial projections and prioritised the risks for ongoing management actions, to ensure the year-end position would deliver the budget allocated.

He highlighted a major risk which had just emerged concerning the reliability of fees and charges income, going back many years. It was clear from a system review of Social Services debt collection, that the process to enforce the payment of amounts owing was deficient. The process only consisted of the production of reminder letters, with no recourse to the courts and enforcement to ensure payment. Officers had urgently put in place a system to ensure ongoing income was recovered, by implementing agreed policy, and to establish the exact size of the unrecoverable debt.

On a motion by Councillor Phil Davies, seconded by Councillor McLachlan, it was -

#### Resolved -

- (1) That Cabinet notes that:
  - (i) At Month 7 (October 2012), the full year forecast projects a potential General Fund overspend of £8.7m;
  - (ii) A review of over/underspends and Earmarked Reserves has been undertaken, reported to the November 29th Cabinet and incorporated into the Interim Director's report;

- (iii)there were no rejected freeze items in the month. Appendix 7 to the report listed those items considered as part of the process.
- (2) Cabinet is extremely concerned at the reference in paragraph 2.14 of the Interim Director of Finance's report concerning the failure of the Council to actively recover Social Services debt over a number of years.
- (3) Cabinet asks the Chief Executive to commission an urgent external independent investigation to establish:
  - 1. The circumstances leading up to this state of affairs.
  - 2. The amount of money which has not been collected and how much might still be recoverable.
  - 3. The length of time this practice has been in operation.
  - 4. The reasons why this practice was allowed to continue.
  - 5. Who knew of and authorised this approach to debt management?
  - 6. What lessons can be learnt to ensure there is no recurrence?
- (4) That Cabinet requests that a report be brought back in a month and an update provided at the 24 January Cabinet.

# 147 CAPITAL MONITORING 2012/13 - MONTH 7 (OCTOBER)

The Interim Director of Finance reported upon the current position regarding the Council's 2012/13 to 2014/15 capital programme. The report reflected:

- The re-profiled 2012/13 capital programme budget which incorporated the decision made by Cabinet on 29 November 2012 (minute 136 refers) to cease or reduce a number of schemes within the programme;
- The expenditure to date, which continued to be less than it should be;
- A request for a revision to the capital programme to reflect slippage of £2.632 million of schemes into the 2013/14 financial year;
- A request for an increase in the programme of £0.3 million for schemes requiring no unsupported borrowing.
- The projected outturn figures for 2012/13, which suggested an underspend of £2.552 million on the revised programme.
- The current funding of the programme and its future affordability, which was subject to a review.

#### Resolved - That Cabinet:

(1) Agrees the revised Capital Programme of £51.660 million.

- (2) Agrees slippage in the programme of £2.362 million from 2012/13 to 2013/14.
- (3) Agrees an increase to the programme of £0.3 million for a Finance scheme (Moreton Library/One Stop Shop) which does not require financing from unsupported borrowing.
- (4) Notes the spend to date at month 7 of £17.279 million, which represents 33.4% of the revised capital budget, with 58% of the financial year having elapsed.
- (5) Notes the work of the Capital Steering Group to detail the schedule of sites to validate the estimate of capital receipts.
- (6) Notes the inclusion within this report of the programme changes agreed by Cabinet on 29 November 2012 of ceased or reduced schemes totalling £30.755 million and consequent annual revenue savings of £2.3 million arising from a review of the current capital programme.

#### 148 CHANCELLOR OF THE EXCHEQUER - AUTUMN STATEMENT

The Interim Director of Finance reported upon the Chancellor of the Exchequer's Autumn Statement of 5 December 2012. His report provided a summary of the main issues, a number of which had a direct bearing on local authorities. What was clear was that there would be no let up in the pressure being applied to local authority finances. The Chancellor had made it clear that spending reductions would continue into 2017-18. Additional spending cuts of £445 million were to be imposed on local authorities in 2014-15. Wirral's resources could therefore be reduced by a further £5.2m over 2014-16. As a result, the 3-year savings target would increase from £103.5m to £108.7m, assuming an even distribution between local authorities.

In moving a motion, Councillor Phil Davies stated that the Autumn Statement revealed the true scale of David Cameron and George Osborne's economic failure. They were failing on jobs and growth, with the economy shrinking this year. As a result, borrowing and debt figures had been revised up and the Government had had to admit it was failing on the one test they set themselves – to balance the books and get the debt down by 2015.

He further stated that, while millionaires got a £3 billion tax cut, it was people who were already struggling to make ends meet — middle and lower income families and pensioners — who were paying the price for this failure. Funding for local government was cut by 2% from 2014/15. This increased Wirral Council's budget shortfall from £103 million to £109 million over the next three years. Instead of a change of course, the Autumn Statement was just more of the same failing policies.

On a motion moved by Councillor Phil Davies, seconded by Councillor McLachlan, it was -

Resolved – That Cabinet agrees that instead of 'more of the same' what was needed was a One Nation approach to the economy: an economy that grows, where everybody has a stake and where the rewards are fairly shared:

- A real plan for jobs and growth, including genuinely bringing forward infrastructure investment, a temporary VAT cut and a bank bonus tax to fund a jobs guarantee for young people.
- Long-term reforms to make our economy stronger, including proper reforms to our banks.
- And cancelling the tax cut for millionaires at a time when millions of families and pensioners are paying more.

#### 149 **DELEGATION ON EMPLOYMENT ISSUES**

The Chief Executive reported upon a proposal to delegate to him, as the Head of Paid Service, the power to make appropriate arrangements for conducting appeals in connection with gradings, grievances or disciplinary action against or dismissal of employees.

Currently such arrangements were delegated to the Appeals Sub-Committee of the Employment and Appointments Committee. It was recommended that the council move to the practice common in many authorities where the Chief Executive, as Head of Paid Service, ensured that appropriate appeal arrangements were established. Again this accorded with the feedback from the Peer Challenge which recommended that roles were clarified to ensure elected members did not get too involved in operational matters and officers were empowered to take decisions.

This would not apply to Chief Officers or Deputies, effectively Strategic Directors and Heads of Service in the new structure. In those cases the Employment and Appointments Committee would continue to be responsible for their appointment and dismissal.

With the permission of the Chair, Joe Taylor, Unison Wirral Branch Secretary, addressed the Cabinet. He stated that the unions were totally opposed to this proposal as this was the last piece of independence for officers within the authority. Previous appeals to Members had found flaws in the way some officers had carried out dismissals of staff.

Councillor Phil Davies commented that he agreed with the proposal as managers were paid to manage staff and Councillors should not be involved.

On a motion by Councillor Phil Davies, seconded by Councillor McLachlan, it was -

#### Resolved – That Cabinet recommends to Council that:

- (1) They delegate to the Chief Executive, as Head of Paid Service, the power to make appropriate arrangements for conducting appeals in connection with gradings, grievances or disciplinary action against or dismissal of employees.
- (2) The Chief Executive, as Head of Paid Service, report annually to the Employment and Appointments Committee on the operation of the arrangements for conducting appeals in connection with gradings, grievances or disciplinary action against or dismissal of employees.
- (3) The delegations to the Appeals Sub-Committee to hear and determine appeals in connection with gradings, grievances or disciplinary action against or dismissal of employees, be removed.

# 150 FEES FOR RESIDENTIAL AND NURSING HOME CARE - RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION

The Director of Adult Social Services presented a report which gave details of the outcome of consultation with independent residential and nursing home providers regarding the fees option proposals as agreed by Cabinet at its meeting on 18 October 2012 (minute 102 refers).

The report also detailed a further revised option which had been developed in response to feedback received during the consultation period and which should be consulted on. The proposals had been considered with due regard to the Council's priority to safeguard vulnerable adults and promote choice and control. The Council had a statutory duty to set a fee level that enabled efficiently run care homes to provide care that was compliant with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) Essential Standards of Quality and Safety Regulations 2010.

# **Resolved – That Cabinet:**

(1) Considers the new fee level Option, as described in Section 5 of the report, that has been developed using a Model of a 37 bedded home and 95% occupancy that responds to the feedback from home owners.

- (2) Consults with home owners for a further four weeks to ascertain views on the New fee level Option including that the increased offer is made to cover the period of two years, i.e. 2012/13 and 2013/14.
- (3) Agrees to additional resources being allocated to the Department of Adult Social Services to take account of the costs of implementing the proposals.
- (4) Adjusts the previously agreed recommendation to collect 'top ups' with effect from 1 April 2013 to 1 September 2013 in order to consider the debt management issues potentially raised by this policy.
- (5) Amends its resolution of 18 October 2012 so as to authorise the Director of Adult Social Services to serve not less than three months notice of termination of all contracts with homeowners for residential and nursing care at pre-April 2011 fee levels in those cases where the homeowners have accepted residents since April 2011 at the current fee levels (with or without third party top ups) on the Council's usual terms and conditions with the intent that the current contract at post-April 2011 fee levels should encompass all residents in the relevant home without differentiating between their date of entry into the home.

#### 151 WASP SERVICE TO SCHOOL TRANSFER

The Acting Director of Children's Services asked the Cabinet to approve arrangements, following the directive from the Department for Education to delegate budget and staffing responsibilities to the Management Committee of Pupil Referral Units (PRU) from 1 April 2013. The Wirral Alternative Schools Programme (WASP) was the Wirral PRU. Currently WASP was a Local Authority Service and was controlled by the policies and practices of Wirral Local Authority. The directive from the Department for Education would result in WASP becoming a maintained school and the Management Committee would take over the delegated powers similar to other schools maintained by Wirral Local Authority.

# Resolved – That Cabinet agrees that:

- (1) Wirral Alternative Schools Programme (WASP) is transferred from a service to a maintained school.
- (2) Budget responsibilities for WASP are transferred to the WASP Management Committee, in line with current Government funding arrangements, from 1 April 2013.

- (3) Staffing responsibilities for WASP are transferred to the WASP Management Committee. Appropriate consultation regarding any required changes to contracts of employment and Statements of Particulars are dealt with prior to 1 April 2013.
- (4) WASP is given the same level of autonomy as other Wirral Maintained Schools from 1 April 2013.
- (5) A detailed plan will be produced to enable the transfer arrangements to be monitored closely by the Cabinet Member for Children's Services in association with the Acting Director of Children's Services.

# 152 APPROVAL OF TENANCY STRATEGY FOR WIRRAL

The Interim Strategic Director: Regeneration and Environment submitted a report which sought the Cabinet's views on the Tenancy Strategy Statement, attached as Appendix 1 to the report, prior to wider consultation with Registered Providers of Social Housing and the general public. The development of a tenancy strategy by local authorities was a statutory requirement of the Localism Act 2011.

Resolved – That Cabinet approves the Tenancy Strategy Statement in Appendix 1 to the report, prior to wider consultation with Registered Providers and the general public.

# 153 PROPOSAL TO CHANGE THE COUNCIL'S DISCRETIONARY SEVERANCE SCHEME

The Chief Executive submitted a report which provided the Cabinet with a range of options to change the Council's Enhanced Discretionary Severance Scheme, including an update on the consultation process in relation to this.

Cabinet were asked to consider the options and the consultation feedback, and to make a decision in relation to changing the Council's current Enhanced Discretionary Severance Scheme.

Councillor Phil Davies informed the Cabinet of the need to seek an urgent meeting with the Government to see how much might be capitalised.

On a motion by Councillor Phil Davies, seconded by Councillor George Davies, it was -

#### **Resolved – That Cabinet:**

(1) Recognises the importance of adopting a severance scheme which is as generous as possible. However, it also recognises that any

scheme must be workable, affordable and reasonable having regard to the foreseeable costs.

- (2) Agrees to note the report of the Chief Executive and to defer a decision on changes to the Enhanced Discretionary Severance Scheme pending advice from Government on how much it is prepared to allow Wirral Council to capitalise.
- (3) Agrees to resume discussions with the trade unions as soon as possible once the position on capitalisation is clear.

#### 154 LEASOWE MILLENNIUM CENTRE

The Acting Director of Law, HR and Asset Management submitted a report which sought approval to the freehold transfer of the Leasowe Millennium Centre to Leasowe Community Homes.

#### Resolved - That,

- (1) the disposal of the Leasowe Millennium Centre to Leasowe Community Homes be approved on the terms reported.
- (2) authority be delegated to the Acting Director of Law, HR and Asset Management, in consultation with the portfolio holder, to approve the final terms for lease back of the library facility.

#### 155 NEW BRIGHTON - ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEME

The Interim Strategic Director: Regeneration and Environment reported that Cabinet at its meeting on 18 October 2012 (minute 108 refers) agreed the funding of £1.2m to implement the environmental scheme for New Brighton Promenade.

The processes involved in considering items affected by the freeze on Capital expenditure meant that the original implementation timescale for this project had had to be revised by the Interim Director of Technical Services. This revision showed that the works could not be implemented without significantly impacting on the spring/summer period in New Brighton and it was considered that as this impact would affect businesses and visitors to New Brighton, then the main works should be delayed until Autumn 2013.

In light of the above, the report set out a revised timetable for the project, recommended that the health and safety works commence and were completed by February 2013 and sought authority for the Interim Strategic Director: Regeneration and Environment to proceed with the necessary procurement processes to undertake both elements of the works.

#### Resolved – That Cabinet:

- (1) Approves the revised timetable and Capital Programme funding profile for the delivery of the scheme as set out in the report;
- (2) Authorises the Interim Strategic Director: Regeneration and Environment to proceed with the necessary procurement process to undertake the works.

# 156 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK - ANNUAL MONITORING REPORTS

The Interim Strategic Director: Regeneration and Environment submitted a report which sought Cabinet's approval for the publication of the Council's statutory Annual Monitoring Report (AMR), which reported on the impact of land use planning policies and the preparation of local plans and other planning documents. There was no longer a requirement for the AMR to be submitted to the Secretary of State but copies of the AMR had to be made available for public inspection on the Council's website.

The report also recommended a change in the approach to the future publication of monitoring information to meet the requirements of new national regulations that required the Council to make any up-to-date information collected for monitoring purposes available as soon as possible after the information had been collected.

The report recommended that the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Planning Strategy was given authority to approve the publication of future monitoring information on the Council's website and that future monitoring data was wherever appropriate made available in an open machine readable format subject to a licence that allowed open re-use to maximise the value to the public.

#### Resolved -

- (1) That the Annual Monitoring Report for 2011/12, attached to the report, and its accompanying data tables, are approved and placed on the Council's website for public inspection.
- (2) That the full Council be requested to approve that Schedule 5 of part 3 of the Constitution be amended to give the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Planning Strategy delegated authority to approve the publication of future monitoring information on the Council's website, to enable future monitoring information to be made available to the public as soon as possible after the information becomes available, in line with the requirements of the

Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

(3) That future monitoring information is, wherever appropriate, made available to the public on the Council's website in open and machine readable format subject to the Open Government Licence published by the National Archive or an appropriate equivalent standard, to allow open re-use to maximise the value of the data to the public.

#### 157 COMMITTEE REFERRAL - TRADE CENTRE SCRUTINY REVIEW

Cabinet received the Scrutiny Review of Preparations for the International Trade Centre in Wirral; prepared by the Trade Centre Scrutiny Panel, which had been referred by the Economy and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 14 November, 2012 (minute 33 refers).

Councillor Hackett thanked the Scrutiny Review Panel for an excellent piece of scrutiny work which contained a number of innovative ideas and Councillor Phil Davies concurred with these comments.

#### Resolved -

- (1) That the contents and recommendations of the Trade Centre Scrutiny Panel be agreed.
- (2) That the thanks of Cabinet be accorded to the Members of the Scrutiny Panel for the significant work undertaken in the review of preparations for the International Trade Centre and also to Mr A Veitch, Scrutiny Support Officer.

# 158 COMMITTEE REFERRAL - ADOPTION OF THE OXTON CONSERVATION AREA MANAGEMENT PLAN

Cabinet was requested to approve the Adoption of the Oxton Conservation Area Management Plan, which had been referred from the Planning Committee (minute 72 (26 July 2012) refers).

Resolved – That Cabinet approves the adoption of the Oxton Conservation Area Management Plan as a material reference in planning and conservation matters.

# 159 ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR (PART 1) - AUTOMATIC ENROLMENT - POTENTIAL DEFERRAL OF EMPLOYER COSTS

A report of the Interim Director of Finance sought a decision from Cabinet on the option to delay the automatic enrolment of existing eligible jobholders, into the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) employed at Wirral Council, from a staging date of 1 March 2013 to 1 October 2017. Eligible job holders would still be able to enrol into the scheme in the meanwhile.

Resolved – That Cabinet recommends that Wirral Council invokes the transitional provisions within the Employer's Duties (Implementation) (Amendment) Regulations 2012.